
1 
 

Hamden Tree Commission 
Main Floor Conference Room, Hamden Government Center 

Meeting of Tuesday, February 16, 2016 

MINUTES 

6:30 P.M. 

 

Commissioners in Attendance:  Tom Parlapiano, Andy Brand, Mike Montgomery,  

                                                     Jill Nathanson, Susan Sternberg 

Commissioners Excused:  Andy Brand 

 

Others in Attendance:  Peggy Craft, Acting Commission Clerk 

       Jeff Harris, Town Arborist  

      Amanda Kallenbach 

      Diane Hoffman 

      Ellen Endriss, Clean & Green Commission Chair 

    

Call to order 

Mr. Parlapiano called the meeting to order at 6:33 p.m. 

 

Approval of minutes of regular meeting of January 19, 2016 

The following corrections to the Minutes were noted: 

Others in Attendance - Public Works Director Craig Cesare’s and Diane Hoffman’s names were not 

included.   

Page 1, paragraph two, second sentence, it reads “”United Illuminating (UI) said they have done …”  It 

should read “United Illuminating appears to have done …”.  

Page 1, toward the end of paragraph one, it reads  “… there is a private company in Hamden that has a 

contract with UI to remove the wood.”  It should read “… there is a private company in Hamden that has 

a contract with UI to remove the wood in West Haven.”  

Page 1, last sentence in paragraph one reads “UI will come and take it.”  It should read “The UI Contractor 

will come and take it.” 

Page 3, fourth paragraph, first line, should read Jim Grandy not Jim Brandi. 

Commissioner Nathanson motioned to approve the minutes of January 19, 2016 as amended.  Commissioner 

Montgomery seconded the motion.  The vote was unanimous in favor. 

 

Public Comments on Agenda Items 

Regarding AK 5150 Ms. Hoffman suggested sending letters to the appropriate addresses in support of the 

Bill and to also post on the website to support the Bill.  Martin Mador got a meeting together today 

regarding this Bill.  There was a discussion regarding who was invited.  Mr. Mador will send Ms. Kallenbach 

notes regarding the meeting.  Ms. Hoffman discussed grouping shrubs and when to remove a bad one and if 

all the shrubs would need to be removed. 

 

Mr. Montgomery discussed when permit are issued regarding UI.  He also discussed the DBI.  He explained 

that this gives UI the right to remove any scrub or tree with a diameter of six inches or less.   Mr. 

Montgomery explained his objections to this.   

 



2 
 

 

Ms. Hoffman discussed the letter that PURA sent.  She suggested e-mailing the Legislative Council’s 

Environment and Conservation Committee.  She added that she has spoken with Councilman Eric Annis 

regarding this, and he indicated that he is willing to speak with any environment group. 

 

Old Business 

1. UI Vegetation Management Status 

There was a discussion regarding the report from Mr. Brand regarding tagged trees on Still Hill Road and 

the extent of knowledge regarding UI.    Mr. Montgomery stated that Mr. Cesare had said the Commission 

should request copies of permits from Public Works.  Mr. Parlapiano said they had first requested copies of 

the permits in October.  He asked Chief of Staff Julie Smith for copies of the permits, but has not gotten 

them.  He will renew his request.  It was noted that PW Director Craig Cesare could not attend this 

meeting because he is at the Legislative Council Meeting.  If the Council Meeting ends early he will try to 

get here. 

 

2.  Commission Website 

 Mr. Parlapiano visited the website today and checked out the links.  He said they are loading slowly but he 

was very happy with the site.  Ms. Sternberg said the UI schedule is available on the website.  She added 

that Information and Research Officer, Patrick Donnelly, has been very helpful with adding items to the 

website.  Mr. Donnelly will notify Ms. Sternberg when the website is updated in the spring.  The article 

“Let’s Talk Trees” will be out soon.  The newspapers have the article.  Mr. Donnelly will handle this in the 

future. 

 

3. Spring Tree Planting Plans – Follow-Up 

There was a discussion regarding trees near the parking garage behind Town Hall.   The Hamden Police 

Department is concerned about sight lines.  Mr. Montgomery suggested the possibility of gingko biloba.  

The Police Department had problems with grass that has already been planted there.  Next, there was a 

discussion regarding a suitable tree for that area.  The Commissioners also discussed other grasses and/or 

plants that could be used.  

 

There was a discussion regarding the Lent and Leo Road areas.  It was noted that there are 30 homes and 

only eight trees.  There are problems with the soil.  There has been a request for trees in this area. 

 

On Furman Road there are 36 lots and 12 trees.  Joan Howell of 74 Furman Road has sent an e-mail 

regarding this.  Ms. Hoffman has her contact information and will supply this to the Commission.  Mr. 

Parlapiano discussed homes with solar panels and feels the Commission should not instigate a problem 

regarding trees blocking solar panels. 

 

Mr. Montgomery would like a contact in the Lent and Leo Roads area.  Ms. Kallenbach resides in this area 

and volunteered to be the contact.  It was noted that the trees in this area are in poor condition.  Mr. 

Montgomery discussed the types of trees in this area.  He would like someone in the community to work 

with the Commission regarding residents who would like trees and what types.  He would need a list put 

together by March 15th.  Ms. Kallenbach will work with Mr. Montgomery on this. 

 



3 
 

Next, Ms. Sternberg discussed Bassett Park and Mr. Cesare’s suggestion regarding adding trees to this park.  

Sternberg will look into what types of trees would be suitable.  She said there were many trees removed in 

that area to make way for the parking lot and sidewalk.  She said former Mayor Scott Jackson said trees 

would be added to this area.  Ms. Nathanson noted that there is a need for shade in many areas in this park.  

Ms. Sternberg discussed trees that have been recently removed on Waite Street.  

 

A Time Line is needed for Miller Library, Arbor Day, Lent and Leo Roads and Furman Road on the 

planting agenda by April 15th.  Mr. Parlapiano will look for one more project for spring.  Ms. Nathanson 

noted that the trees on Woodlawn Street look awful.  Mr. Montgomery said some people have planted their 

own trees and are doing their own pruning.  Mr. Parlapiano said that it is necessary to get an inventory 

done.  He said there are many bad trees due to UI pruning.   Mr. Montgomery discussed stumps that have 

been removed on Harmon Street after many years.   

 

Ms. Nathanson discussed planting trees on busier street and more lightly traveled commercial streets such 

as Skiff, Davis, Treadwell, and Benham Streets, and Putnam and Circular Avenues.  Ms. Sternberg noted 

the shallow set back on Putnam.  Mr. Parlapiano discussed Town right-of-way and planting on the other 

side of the sidewalk.     

 

An individual has requested a tree at 47 Harmon Street.  Mr. Parlapiano was asked if he had any old 

requests.  Ms. Sternberg said Chief of Staff Julie Smith had the old requests.  Mr. Parlapiano said he hasn’t 

received any requests.  He would like a list put together to send to Public Works and to Ms. Smith. 

 

4. Arbor Day Plans 

It was noted that Arbor Day will be on Friday April 29th.  Mr. Montgomery said this is late for planting.  It 

was also noted that the Earth Day celebration will be held on April 16th.  Mr. Parlapiano said there will be 

a planting at the Miller Library on Arbor Day. The Commissioner discussed suggestions for Arbor Day 

made at the last meeting.  Ms. Nathanson likes the idea of a reading tied into planting, and would like to 

see it geared towards kids.  There was a discussion regarding how to advertise this event.  It was suggested 

that information be sent to Patrick Donnelly and have him distribute it to the media.  Mr. Parlapiano said 

this is an interpretive program and we should nail down what to do on that day.  Ms. Nathanson asked if 

kids could safely watch.  Mr. Parlapiano he believes so.  There was a discussion regarding the Library area.  

It was noted that we should look around and see where a tree could be used; perhaps behind the Senior 

Center.  Ms. Sternberg asked if the tree pits have stump.  Mr. Montgomery said they can easily be taken 

out.  Mr. Parlapiano said an Arbor Day Proclamation on the Arbor Day Website would help up meet the 

Tree City Requirements.  He said the program should include a reading of, perhaps, The Giving Tree, the 

reading of the Proclamation an interpretive walk and a planting.  Ms. Hoffman suggested asking State 

Representative Mike Dagostino to read the Proclamation.  There was a discussion regarding where the 

reading should be done.  Mr. Montgomery said a good site at Miller Library needs to be identified.  Ms. 

Hoffman said it would be nice if there was a banner that kids could hold showing that they support the 

planting.  She also asked what time this event would take place.   Mr. Parlapiano said 10:00 AM.  He also 

said that he feels this should be done on a Saturday.  Ms. Sternberg felt it should be done on Arbor Day.  

Diane suggested having a day care group attend.  Mr. Parlapiano feels it should have a date when more 

people could attend.  

 

 



4 
 

 

5. Hogan Road & Benham Circuit Permits 

No Discussion 

 

6. Other Old Business 

 

Mr. Parlapiano discussed the article “Let’s Talk Trees”.   Mr. Harris explained the content of the article.  

Mr. Parlapiano listed the newspapers that the article was distributed to.  A discussion followed that 

included having the article placed on the website.   

 

Mr. Harris discussed a second article.  He said the season of planting is coming and perhaps Mr. 

Montgomery would write something.  Ms. Sternberg asked if there is a schedule for these articles.  Mr. 

Parlapiano said monthly.  Ms. Sternberg will let Mr. Donnelly know the schedule.   

 

There was a discussion regarding pruning of trees by private parties.  Ms. Nathanson said she could not get 

a permit.  She reported that Mr. Cesare said he would not issue a permit for her to prune the tree that has 

lost a limb.  There was a discussion regarding this subject. 

  

New Business 

1.  Public Works Tree Activity Report 

   Tree Planting/Removal/Pruning/Permits Issued 

 

Mr. Parlapiano said Mr. Cesare was going to deliver a Tree Activity Report but he is not in 

attendance.  As noted earlier in the minutes, he is at a Legislative Council Meeting. 

 

Mr. Parlapiano discussed the trees in Town that need to come down.  He said that the Commission 

cannot review whether a tree should be taken down, when they are not notified what trees are 

coming down.  The Commission is only notified after the tree has been taken down.  The Commission 

has requested this information many times, but have not received it.  He added that perhaps the 

Risk Manager needs to be involved.     

 

2. House Bill No. 5150 

An Act Concerning Tree Wardens’ Notices on Trees and Shrubs Prior to Removal,   

Tree Removal Along State Highways and Clean-Ups by Public Utility Corporations Following 

Certain Tree Removal 

 

Mr. Parlapiano said that he is looking for people to testify in Hartford regarding this Bill, and 

perhaps the Tree Commission sending a letter.  Ms. Nathanson asked if she could send a letter as a 

member of the Tree Commission.  Mr. Parlapiano said she could.  Mr. Parlapiano will draft a letter 

and distribute it to the Commission members for comments. 

  

Mr. Parlapiano distributed a list regarding this Bill that was sent by State Representative Mike 

Dagostino.  There was a discussion regarding these comments 

 

 



5 
 

Mr. Harris discussed a person he has been in contact with in Woodbury regarding trees that are 

going to be removed by Eversource.   

 

3. Other New Business  

 

There was a discussion regarding a Hickory tree that was removed at West Rock State Park.  Mr. 

Parlapiano said he is not critical of this removal.  Ms. Hoffman, Ms. Kallenbach and Ms. Sternberg said 

that there should have been notification regarding this removal.  It was felt that the West Rock 

Association should have been notified.  Discussion regarding this topic continued.   

 

Ms. Hoffman sent a letter to PURA Chair House asking for clarification as to whether PURA had banned 

UI from removing stumps or replanting.  Mr. House said they have not banned utilities from anything. He 

added that this should be considered on a case by case basis.  Mr. Parlapiano read from the letter regarding 

PURA’s response to Ms. Hoffman’s letter.  Mr. Parlapiano discussed the response.  He will respond stating 

that the Tree Commission and UI are at two different ends of the spectrum regarding this subject.  Mr. 

Parlapiano read a letter that he would like to send to PURA.  He asked for the Commission’s approval to 

send this letter.  Mr. Parlapiano will distribute the letter to the Commissioners for their comments.   

 

Mr. Parlapiano asked Mr. Harris if he was familiar with the process regarding how UI chooses the trees to 

be taken down.  Mr. Harris said he is not sure but he understands that Mr. Cesare does a walk along with 

UI to see what trees would be taken down, but does not have any input into what would or wouldn’t be 

taken down.  Next, the permit process was discussed.  Mr. Parlapiano said the Commission has requested 

copies of the permits since October, but to date have not received them.   

 

Ms. Sternberg asked about the Tree Ordinance (1993) that Mr. Montgomery had distributed.  Mr. 

Montgomery said it was in his files, so he sent it to the Commissioners.  He said he has no idea regarding 

what happened with this.  Ms. Nathanson will start working on the Ordinance.  She asked about adding 

that a private citizen could have a tree on Town property pruned without getting a permit.  There was a 

discussion regarding this.  Mr. Parlapiano said the Commission would not address this right now.  Mr. 

Parlapiano discussed the position of Superintendent of Trees.  This is a Union Position.  In other Towns the 

Tree Warden is appointed by the Mayor. 

   

Adjournment 

Commissioner Nathanson made a motion to adjourn.  Commissioner Sternberg seconded the motion.  The 

vote was unanimous in favor.  The meeting adjourned at 8:22 p.m. 

 

Submitted by: ________________________________ 

                         Peggy Craft, Acting Commission Clerk 

  

     

  


